Regular Board Meeting

TAMALPAIS UNION HIGH 05/14/2024 - 06:00 PM
SCHOOL DISTRICT Kreps Conference Room
395 Doherty Drive, Larkspur, California, 94939

Phone (415) 945-1020; www.tamdistrict.org

MEETING MINUTES

Call to Order at 4:55 p.m.;
Closed Session 5:00 p.m.;
Regular Board Meeting 6:00 p.m.
Zoom Link: https://tamdistrict-org.zoom.us/j/94913793200?
pwd=K2REQMEXNVVIYIIrQVIXckZ11 3AvZz09
Webinar ID 949 1379 3200; Passcode 900696

Board of Trustees
Leslie Harlander, President
Emily Uhlhorn, Clerk
Karen Loebbaka
Cynthia Roenisch
Kevin Saavedra

Tara Taupier, Ed. D, Superintendent
Attendees
Voting Members
Leslie Harlander, Board President

Cynthia Roenisch, Board Member
Emily Uhlhorn, Board Clerk

1. Call Meeting to Order

A regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Tamalpais Union High School District (District) was
called to order in the Kreps Conference Room at 4:57 p.m. A quorum was declared present.

2. Approval of Closed Session Agenda
M/S/C (Uhlhorn/Roenisch), unanimously.

3. Public Comments on Closed Session Agenda

There were no public comments on the closed session agenda.

4. Recess to Closed Session in the Superintendent's Office

A. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Ed Code
§35146

B. With Respect to Every Item of Business to be discussed in Closed Session Pursuant to Gov Code
54956.9(b): Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation



C. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov Code
§54956.95

D. With Respect to Every ltem of Business to be discussed in Closed Session Pursuant to Gov Code
§54957

E. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov Code
§54957.6

5. Reconvene Into Open Session
The meeting reconvened into open session at 6:06 p.m.

6. Announcement of Reportable Action Taken in Closed Session
Ms. Harlander read the following in open session:

"In regard to ltem 4.C., in closed session, the board took action to reject a government claim filed by
Employee |D #106730. The board voted unanimously."

There was no other reportable action taken in closed session.

Motion made hy: Cynthia Roenisch
Mation seconded by: Emily Uhthorn
Vaoting:

Leslie Harlander - Yes

Cynthia Roenisch - Yes

Emily Uhlhorn - Yes

7. Approve Agenda and Review Norms
Board members Uhlhorn, Roenisch and Harlander agreed to table agenda item 13.C. for another board
meeting.

M/S/C (Uhlhorn/Roenisch), unanimously.

Student Trustee, Gia Debok, read the board norms.

8. Public Comment on the Consent Agenda
There was no public comment on the consent agenda.

9. Approval of Consent Agenda
M/S/C (Roenisch/Uhlhorn), unanimously.

10. Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda

Benedetto Cico, former Redwood High School parent and taxpayer, said he was concerned about the
actions of the board during the last election. He claimed that board members tried to push the bond by
writing letters to the Marin 1J. He said he also received an email on the day of the election from the
Principal at Redwood High School and a robocall from a teacher at Archie Williams. He said that he
wrote a letter to the board and said they received it, but never got a response to his questions. He
stated that it was unethical for public trustees to comment on bond measures. He suggested that board




members and Dr. Taupier should be more clear about whether they're writing on behalf of themselves
or the district.

Damian Morgan, Tamalpais High School graduate and Marin City resident, asked if the new ethnic
studies classes and curriculum included input from local Black residents or if they would be
"whitewashed". He suggested that the courses should include the local history of Marin City and
redlining, as well as the history of other local areas, such as Richmond and Oakland. He said he hopes
that they create something meaningful.

Tammy Edmonson, Tamalpais High School graduate and representative of Mill Valley Force for Racial
Equity and Empowerment (MV Free), said that racism has been a feature of Tam district high schools
since she was a student in the 1970s. She stated that we all have failed in our obligation to make
schools a safe and empowering place for every student. She said she appreciates the anti-racist policies
and initiatives the district has enacted, but claimed that it will take aggressive and coordinated actions to
move these ideas from paper to reality. She suggested the following measures:

e Parents and students should be required to read, understand and discuss these policies and
sign a form upon enrollment. When there are violations, she said that consequences should be
severe and swiftly and uniformly applied, and the community should be informed as fully as
possible about any known violations and the consequences imposed.

e The district should back up its policies with a concrete anti-racism action plan with clear and
measurable goals that can be regularly assessed and adjusted as needed.

e The district should report its anti-racist actions and progress to the entire school community
at least once per quarter to keep the district accountable and keep the importance of anti-
racism front of mind.

e The district should provide meaningful opportunities for community participation and input
into the development of anti-racist strategies. She asked questions about the Racial Justice
Task Force.

Francie Salle, Archie Williams High School teacher, implored everyone to read the book, "The Anxious
Generation" by Jonathan Haidt. She asked the district to consider using "yonder pouches" for student
cell phones. She said that she was shocked to learn about the amount of violence that young people are
exposed to on social media. She said "yonder pouches" will give students a respite from the negative
impacts of social media. She also asked the district to gather data on period absences and tardies, and to
put consequences in place for both absences and tardies, so kids know that they care if they come to
school or not. She said she believes that the Deans of Students are doing the best they can, but cannot
compel students to get out of bed in the morning.

Byron Nelson, Redwood High School PE Teacher, spoke about the district's refusal to fund PE uniforms.
He said that the lack of PE uniforms has made a significantly negative impact on PE classes, and most PE
teachers strongly disagree with it. Mr. Nelson stated that athletic activities require proper attire for the
range of activities performed in class, and if such clothing is required, it should be provided by the
school, similar to supplies for art or microscopes for science. He said that the current dress code is not
working, and PE uniforms are needed for reasons such as equity, motivation, hygiene, class management
and culture, teacher comfort and a safe work environment. He said there has been a noticeable
difference in participation, effort, and physical output with the current system over the past few years.
On behalf of the Redwood PE Department, he requested that the district reevaluate funding for PE
uniforms for next school year to boost student participation, enjoyment, and educational outcomes.

Mimi Willard, Coalition of Sensible Taxpayers, said she was disturbed that PE uniforms are not supplied
to students for many reasons, including equity and hygiene. She stated that the district and Foundation
puts a significant amount of money into activities related to the bond measure, so it seems like there is




plenty of money available for PE uniforms. She said it's important to consider them as a priority.

Nancy Carlston, Mill Valley Force for Racial Equity and Empowerment (MV Free), said that she agreed
with what Ms. Edmonson, and encouraged the district to have a clear understanding (written and signed)
with students and parents, that shows them what the consequences are for racist actions, and they
agree to live up to a certain standard of behavior. She acknowledged that it is a hard issue, but said this
is a first step.

There was no other public comment.
Clarifications to Public Comment:

In response to Benedetto Cico's public comment, Ms. Harlander stated that she consulted with
the attorney and confirmed that District employees maintain their first amendment rights, and it is
also in the Trustees' purview to provide information to the public.

In response to Damian Morgan's questions, Dr. Taupier replied that the Ethic Studies curriculum
committee includes feedback from Black staff members, and will be a topic of conversation at the
Marin City Coalition meetings.

In response to Ms. Edmonson's questions, Dr. Taupier said that she gave a full report on the anti-
racist policy and action plan at the board meeting on March 12, 2024, and said that she could find
the minutes on the district website, along with the racial equity webpage. Also, Dr. Taupier stated
that the entire community was invited to the Racial Justice Task Force at the beginning of the
year, and are welcome to join next year.

In response to Byron Nelson's public comment, Ms. Harlander asked Dr. Taupier to bring more
information about PE uniforms at a later meeting.

11. Student Trustee Reports

Gia Debok, Archie Williams High School, reported on AP testing, Prom, a spirit week and blackout-
themed rally, Peer Resource passion projects (including additional outreach to White Hill Middle School
on how to be an upstander), spring sports update, and the hoard's visit to Archie Williams for the
unveiling of the Archie Williams Exhibit.

Mila Mincy, Tamiscal High School, reported that they are focused on wrapping up the semester,
wellness and college counselors are meeting with seniors to prepare them for the transition after
graduation, the upcoming senior celebration, and the Ibram X. Kendi webinar.

Kiera Lensing, Redwood High School, reported on AP testing, a college counseling webinar for 11th
grade parents, leadership teacher appreciation gifts with personal cards from students, an end of year
rally, athletic awards banquet, and the May 29th community chat regarding Measure A.

Lyla Macrae, Tamalpais High School, (read by Kiera Lensing) reported on Tam Beautification Day, a
senijor trip to Santa Cruz Beach Boardwalk, Asian American Pacific Islander (AAPI) Unity Day, Asian
American Heritage Month Movie Night, St.Judes Club's Cancer Awareness fashion show, and the
upcoming Stop and Learn with guest speaker Ibram X. Kendi.

12. Superintendent's Report
Dr. Taupier reported on the district-wide Stop & Learn on May 21st with Ibram X. Kendi:



e Students will participate in a pre-learn, the webinar and a post-learning event.

o A parent/caregiver communication will go out tomorrow with more information about Dr.
Kendi, his books, and links to learn more about him.

¢ She thanked and acknowledged the hard work that Kelly Lara put in to secure Dr. Kendi.

e This is the 3rd out of 4 stop and learns, that are part of our ongoing efforts to educate and
reflect on racism in our school district.

e The 4th stop and learn will be on June 3rd, and will be a panel addressing anti-semitism and
islamophobia.

Dr. Taupier said that the stop and learn is part of the strategic plan developed by Kelly Lara to address
racism across the district, which includes education for students, curriculum and instruction (including
new upper and lower division ethnic studies courses that meet the CA ethnic studies requirement),
professional development, support for students and staff of color, and parent education. She says that
they're exploring better ways to better partner with the school PTSAs and Foundations to ensure that
communication is getting out and everyone is aware of the events and actions that are happening.

Dr. Taupier also shared developments from the latest Marin City Coalition meeting, which was formed
in response to community feedback. She said they're locking into developing action steps in the
following categories: parent orientation and education, harm repair within the Marin City community,
transitioning students from MLK Jr. Academy to Tam high school, mentorship, and reviewing policies
and resolutions.

Dr. Taupier thanked the Tam High PTSA for holding a parent mixer at the Marin City senior center. She
said about 50 people attended and enjoyed a nice bar-b-que, and it was a really nice event.

Dr. Taupier also discussed upcoming coffee chats at the school sites regarding facilities needs.
Public Comment:

Francie Salle, Archie Williams High School teacher, asked Dr. Taupier to notify the staff as soon as
possible about the next stop and learn, so they can prepare.

13. Trustee Considerations (Please note that times listed for each item are estimated and actual times will
vary)

A. Take Action on Architect Design Services Contract with Hibser Yamauchi Architects, Inc. (HYA) to
Provide Site Planning for Archie Williams HS Campus (approx. 6:30 p.m.)

Corbett Elsen, Assistant Superintendent of Business & Operations, presented the architect design
services contract with Hibser Yamauchi Architects, Inc (HYA). He said that this is a fixed-fee contract,
and that HYA is a pre-approved, pre-qualified contractor that was selected out of 3 contractors who
responded to the district's Request for Proposal (RFP). He said the contract is to begin planning for
maintenance work at Archie Williams including roof replacement, HVAC repairs, and removal of
condemned portable classrooms. Additionally, HYA will be utilized to plan for other
maintenance/modernization projects that will be funded by a potential bond if approved in the
future. He said that Fund 40 (Capital Facilities Fund) would be used to pay for the contract.

Ms. Harlander asked if the district's construction management firm would represent the district in
evaluating any subcontractors if HYA uses them. Mr. Elsen confirmed that the district's construction
management firm, Greystone West, will be involved in evaluating and reviewing any subcontractors
or changes to the contract.




Public Comment:

Benedetto Cico, former Redwood High School parent, claimed, in reference to his prior
comments, that the Principal of Redwood cannot use his work time and district email to send
communications about the bond. He stated that the district doesn't have money to hire good
teachers, but the it has money to spend on a program that hasn't been approved by taxpayers.
He said that it's disrespectful, and the district should wait to put the bond on the ballot and see
if it's approved. He also asked if HYA was the lowest bidder and why the district is not
maintaining its facilities until they have money to replace them.

Mimi Willard, Coalition of Sensible Taxpayers, asked if, at the end of the original design phase,
the district would go out for additional bids. She said she was concerned that HYA would be
selected as the architect for future work, because they will be the most qualified if they're
already working on the project. She stated that she is concerned about the process, because if
the district goes out for a bond at a lower amount, it's incumbent on them to make the most of
the money they have to fund the full, original FMP,

There was no other public comment.
Clarifications to Public Comment:

In response to Benedetto Cico's public comment, Ms. Harlander clarified that the contractor
was selected based on best value and lowest bid, which is the best way to go when hiring
contractors.

M/S/C (Roenisch/Uhlhorn), unanimously.

B. Take Action on Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators (approx. 6:40 p.m.)

Wes Cedros, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, presented the Declaration of Need for
Fully Qualified Educators for 2024-25. Mr. Cedros explained that the district files the Declaration of
Need each year in case the it is not able to hire fully qualified educators in specific areas, which is a
rarity at TUHSD. It allows the district more flexibility in hiring in case of unforeseen need.

There was no public comment.

M/S/C {Uhlhorn/Roenisch), unanimously.

C. Governance Handbook Discussion (approx. 6:50 p.m.)
This agenda item was tabled.

D. Discuss SAT/ACT Testing for the 2024-25 School Year {(approx. 7:10 p.m.)

Dr. Tara Taupier presented the district's plan to administer PSAT and SAT testing during the school
day for TUHSD students in 2024-25. She stated that this decision was made due to the
reinstatement of the SAT requirement for many private universities across the country, as well as
parent input about the increasing difficulty in finding local testing locations. Dr. Taupier said that the
most equitable way to offer the PSAT and SAT is through school day administration. She explained
that the window for school day administration is from October 1-31, and once the date(s) are
confirmed, there would be parent communications starting in early Fall 2024. She stated that the
PSAT would be required for 10th graders and optional for 9th graders and 11th graders (who miss
the PSAT in 10th grade). She said that 11th graders will have the opportunity to choose between the




PSAT and SAT, and 12th graders can opt-in to the SAT. If 11th graders want to take the PSAT and
SAT, they will have to find an alternate testing location, because the district will only offer one
administration of the PSAT and SAT. She said that UCs and CSUs still do not require SATs. Dr.
Taupier thanked the parents and community members for their input.

Ms. Roenish asked for confirmation that TUHSD had not been a testing site for many years, and if the
other sites will ramp up their testing if the SAT requirement comes back. Dr. Taupier confirmed and
clarified that TUHSD has not been a test site because they cannot compel employees to administer
the SAT, and it's a significant lift to organize and facilitate an SAT administration. She said that
Novato and San Rafael have been testing sites for years, but she heard that when they open
registration for testing sites, they fill within hours.

Some board members praised the district for offering the PSAT and SAT testing during the school
day.

Student Trustee Kiera Lensing said that she took three SATs this year and had to drive more than an
hour plus for each one, so this would be great for students.

Student Trustee Gia Debok reported that she had a friend who drove more than 6 hours to take the
SAT, so she said now that they will be required again, this would help students so much.

Ms. Roenisch said that the SAT would take away teaching days, so she would like to hear feedback
from teachers after the tests are administered.

Public Comment:

Larisa Tempero, Redwood High School parent, said she was one of the people who reached out
about this, and asked why districts like San Rafael can afford to host it. She stated that, within
the last few weeks, many schools have gone from test optional to test recommended in 2025,
and a vast majority will go back to being test required in 2026. She suggested that the district
consider offering the SAT on Saturdays, like Rodriguez High School, to avoid a loss of teaching
time. She claimed that many students have to drive hours away to take the test, and spend
money on hotel fees, because the tests at local schools fill up within hours, mostly with
students from their own schools. She said it's unrealistic for these schools to absorb all the
students from Tam district high schools. She also said that the ACT is an important test and
proposed that once the SAT is up and running, it should be offered by our district.

There was no other public comment.
Clarifications to public comment:

In response to Ms. Tempero's public comment, Dr. Taupier clarified that the school district can
afford to administer the test on a weekend, but that we can't force staff to proctor it, because

it's considered extra duty. She said the college board does not reimburse for that expense, and
the district can pass the expense along to the students if they wish to, but cost was not part of
the reasoning for not offering the test on weekends.

Ms. Roenisch added that SATs offered on the weekend are run by the College Board. She said
the College Board hires a Coordinator to run the testing sessions, and the College Board pays
the proctors. She stated that it's extremely hard to get proctors, because the amount that
proctors are paid by the College Board is not enticing enough for people to give up their
weekends. She said that there's an inordinate amount of coordination and scrambling to find




proctors that goes with hosting the test on the weekends, rather than testing during the school
day.

E. Discuss Rotating the Board Meeting Venue (approx. 7:20 p.m.)

The board discussed the suggestio‘n from Mr. Saavedra to rotate the venue of the board meetings to
the school sites once per month.

Ms. Harlander and Dr. Taupier recalled that they had rotated the meeting to different sites at one
time, but there were challenges with the size and layout of the locations, and the audio/visual set up.
Dr. Taupier added that they got feedback from community members that rotating the board meetings
was less transparent because they couldn't figure out where the board meetings were each time. She
said that when it's at the DO, they always know where it's going to be, and they don't have to check
where they're going. Also, the District Office is more centrally located for all the schools.

Ms. Harlander suggested that they keep it on the table and consider it, depending on agenda items.
Ms. Uhlhorn said that although it feels good, the practical reality is that it confuses people and there
are more likely to be A/V issues. She said we have a commitment to offer the meeting on Zoom, so
they have to ensure that they're in a place where the A/V works. She stated that she is not sure if we
will get more participation, and it will just confuse people.

Student Trustee Gia Debok agreed that going from place to place would be confusing, and it's better
to have one central place, where they know the A/V system works. She said Redwood is centrally
located, so it's an easy drive from Archie Williams and Tamalpais.

Board members agreed that they would not rotate the board meeting venue.

There was no public comment.

14, Consent Agenda
A. Approve Draft Minutes of the April 30, 2024 BOT Meeting
B. Approve Personnel Summary for April 15, 2024
C. Ratify Batch and Warrant Details- April 2024
D. Approve Contracts over $40,000 - May 2024
E. Ratify Contracts under $40,000 - May 2024

F. Approve California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (CUPCCAA) Contract with
Bauman Landscape & Construction, Inc. (Bauman) to Repair Softball Field and Grass Area at Archie
Williams HS

G. Declare as Surplus and Authorize- Drill Press- San Andreas

15. Trustee Reports
Ms. Roenish said it was great witnessing the unveiling of the Archie Williams display in the gym foyer




and visit classrooms and see the amazing work the teachers are doing. She suggested that the board
read the book "The Anxious Generation” by Jonathan Haidt, and discuss the ideas in the book, because
it's related to raising kids with smartphones and data that shows that it leads to an increase in anxiety
and depression, which the district is trying to address through wellness programs.

Ms. Roenish asked if the board wanted to see more data on period absences and tardies, but thought
that there weren't enough trustees to decide if it should go on a future agenda.

Ms. Uhlhorn reported on the second Marin City Community Services District (MCCSD) Town Hall, and
said the main themes they discussed were conseguences, communication, parent engagement, and how
the community steps up to educate, hold each other accountable to be anti-racist and seek racial justice.
She said the next meeting is on May 29th, which she cannot attend. She said she felt there was
solidarity, and commented on the PTSA event at the Marin City Senior Center the night before. She also
attended the Marin City Coalition meeting and suggested that as they move into next year, whoever the
board members are, they need to have a consistent presence at the Marin City Coalition meetings and
should not just drop in. Ms. Uhlhorn also attended the JLAC meeting and commented on the status of
the state budget and large deficit. Finally, she reiterated her thanks to Kelly Lara for securing Ibram X.
Kendi and responding to a direct request from the Black Student Union, which was empowering.

Ms. Roenisch said she couldn't attend the Marin City Community Services District Town Hall either, and
suggested that they reach out to the board to determine who will go on behalf of the board.

Ms. Harlander also reported on the Archie Williams video display unveiling, and stated that the Marin
City Coalition meeting was constructive. She also discussed "The Anxious Generation" and said she got
information from one of the trustees of the Mill Valley School District about the same topic, and will
bring back more information once she gets it in June. Ms. Harlander also attended the Sausalito Marin
City School District board meeting, where she spoke and was asked about having a joint board meeting
between the two districts.

Ms. Uhlhorn noted that the President of the Sausalito Marin City School District was also at the MCCSD
meeting, and suggested that they work together to address racial issues, and include Bolinas-Stinson and
Mill Valley.

Ms. Roenisch referenced the student trustee report by Gia Debok as an example of students reaching
out to feeder middle schools and showing them what is expected, and suggested that we need to share
the Peer Resources program model at all the sites.

Student Trustee Gia Debok spoke about the student outreach and said that they're trying to get out to
more middle schools earlier in the year. Ms, Debok praised her Peer Resource teacher, Jenny Brown,
and said that she is amazing and is the best teacher to lead this.

Ms. Harlander asked to hear a presentation about the Peer Resource program at Archie Williams,
visiting middle schools and talking with students.

Dr. Taupier said that there is also a Peer Resource program at Redwood, and they go out to feeder
schools as well.

Ms. Roenisch also requested information about coordination among student-led groups, such as
Leadership, SLAM and Peer Resource at Archie Williams, and asked if the district ultimately moves to a

common bell schedule, could it be possible for them all to meet at the same time and share resources.

Gia Dehok said that the leaders of different student-led organizations are interested in working together




across the district.

16. Conclusion

17. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 7:35 p.m.

Suirintendent

10



